

UNIFORMED SERVICES UNIVERSITY OF THE HEALTH **SCIENCES**

ARMED FORCES RADIOBIOLOGY RESEARCH INSTITUTE 8901 WISCONSIN AVENUE, BUILDING 42 BETHESDA, MARYLAND 20889-5603 www.usuhs.edu/afrri

03606931 Branch 2



ACR64-92-17-20 M065

24-January 2020

MEMORANDUM

To:

Licensing Assistance Team

Division of Nuclear Materials Safety

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Region 1

2100 Renaissance Blvd. Suite 100 King of Prussia, PA 19406-2713

From: Acting Director, Armed Forces Radiobiology Research Institute (AFRRI)

8901 Wisconsin Ave, Building 42

Bethesda, MD 20889-5603

Subject: Statement of Intent, Decommissioning Funds for AFRRI License # 19-08330#03

1. As Director, Armed Forces Radiobiology Research Institute (AFRRI), I exercise express authority and responsibility to request from the Uniformed Services University of the Health Sciences (USUHS) funds for decommissioning activities associated with operations authorized by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission material license 19-08330-03. This authority is specified by Department of Defense Instruction 5105.45, Uniformed Services University of the Health Services (USU), dated 30 Ma7 2019. A copy of this instruction is attached as evidence that I am authorized to represent AFRRI in this transaction.

2. AFRRI is an organizational element of USUHS. Within this authority, I intend to request that funds be made available, when necessary, in the amount of \$113,000 (the amount required by 10 CFR 30.35(d)) to decommission the subject licensed facility located at 8901 Wisconsin Avenue, Bldg 42, Bethesda, MD 20889-5603. A site-specific estimate dated 31 October 2016 estimated the cost for decommissioning, minus the 25% contingency, to be less than the amount required by 10 CFR 30.30(d) for the materials licensed under the above license. The licensed amount is greater than 1010 but less than 1012 times the applicable quantities of appendix B to part 30 in sealed sources. I intend to request and obtain the funds noted herein sufficiently in advance to prevent delay of any and all required decommissioning activities.

> DANIELLE WOOTEN CAPT, MSC, USN

Acting Director, AFRRI

Attachment 1. DODI 5105.45

NONNEGOTIABLE

618061

Learning to Care for Those in Harm's Way



DOD INSTRUCTION 5105.45

UNIFORMED SERVICES UNIVERSITY OF THE HEALTH SCIENCES (USU)

Originating Component:

Office of the Under Secretary of Defense for Personnel and Readiness

Effective:

May 30, 2019

Releasability:

Cleared for public release. Available on the DoD Issuances Website at

http://www.esd.whs.mil/DD.

Reissues and Cancels:

DoD Instruction 5105.45, "Uniformed Services University of the Health

Sciences (USUHS)," December 26, 2013

Incorporates and Cancels: DoD Directive 6010.7, "Admission Policies for the Uniformed Services

University of the Health Sciences (USUHS)," November 12, 1997 DoD Instruction 6010.20, "Admission Procedures for the Uniformed Services University of the Health Sciences (USUHS)," June 17, 1997

DoD Instruction 5105.33, "Armed Forces Radiobiology Research Institute

(AFRRI)," March 29, 2006

Approved by:

James N. Stewart, Assistant Secretary of Defense for Manpower and

Reserve Affairs, Performing the Duties of the Under Secretary of Defense

for Personnel and Readiness

Purpose: In accordance with the authority in DoD Directive (DoDD) 5124.02 and pursuant to Chapter 104 of Title 10, United States Code (U.S.C.), this issuance establishes policy, assigns responsibilities, and prescribes procedures of the USU.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1: GENERAL ISSUANCE INFORMATION	
1.1. Applicability.	
1.2. Policy.	2
1.3. Information Collections.	•
SECTION 2: RESPONSIBILITIES	4
2.1. Under Secretary of Defense for Personnel and Readiness (USD(P&R))	
2.2. Assistant Secretary of Defense for Health Affairs (ASD(HA))	
2.3. President, USU.	
2.4. Director, Defense Legal Services Agency.	8
2.5. OSD and DoD Component Heads.	8
2.6. Secretaries of the Military Departments.	8
SECTION 3: PROCEDURES	9
3.1. Director, AFRRI, Nomination and Appointment.	9
3.2. Admissions Procedures.	9
SECTION 4: MISSION AND ORGANIZATION	10
4.1. Mission	10
4.2. Organization	10
GLOSSARY	12
Acronyms	12
References	13

SECTION 1: GENERAL ISSUANCE INFORMATION

1.1. APPLICABILITY. This issuance applies to:

- a. OSD, the Military Departments (including the Coast Guard at all times, including when it is a Service in the Department of Homeland Security by agreement with that Department), the Office of the Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff and the Joint Staff, the Combatant Commands, the Office of the Inspector General of the Department of Defense, the Defense Agencies, the DoD Field Activities, and all other organizational entities within the DoD (referred to collectively in this issuance as the "DoD Components").
- b. The Commissioned Corps of the U.S. Public Health Service, under agreement with the Department of Health and Human Services, and the Commissioned Corps of the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, under agreement with the Department of Commerce.

1.2. POLICY. The USU:

- a. Pursuant to Chapter 104, Title 10 U.S.C., conducts its mission as described in Paragraph 4.1. of this issuance.
- b. When making admissions decisions, adheres to the principle of equal educational opportunity for all. Pursuant to DoDD 1020.02E:
 - (1) Individual consideration will be given to all applicants to USU programs.
- (2) Acceptance decisions will be made without unlawful discrimination based on race, sex, sexual preference, color, creed, religion, national origin, marital status, or State of residence.
- (3) USU will establish focused, significant, and sustained programs to recruit and retain suitably diverse students.
- 1.3. INFORMATION COLLECTIONS. Applications to the USU, referred to in Paragraph 3.2, have been assigned report control symbol DD-HA-2659 in accordance with the procedures in Volume 1 of DoD Manual 8910.01 and Office of Management and Budget control number 0720-AAFB in accordance with the procedures in Volume 2 of DoD Manual 8910.01. The expiration date of this information collection is listed in the DoD Information Collections System at https://apps.osd.mil/sites/DoDIIC/Pages/default.aspx.

SECTION 2: RESPONSIBILITIES

- 2.1. UNDER SECRETARY OF DEFENSE FOR PERSONNEL AND READINESS (USD(P&R)). In addition to the responsibilities in Paragraph 2.5., the USD(P&R) has overall responsibility for operation and oversight of the USU and establishes salary schedules and other related benefits for faculty and staff.
- 2.2. ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF DEFENSE FOR HEALTH AFFAIRS (ASD(HA)). Under the authority, direction, and control of the USD(P&R), the ASD(HA):
- a. Exercises authority, direction, and control over the President, USU; develops policies and procedures for its operation and oversight; and implements such policies and procedures pursuant to DoDD 5136.01.
- b. Exercises the authorities over the USU vested in the Secretary of Defense by Title 10, U.S.C., except:
- (1) The authority to appoint the President, USU, which resides with the Secretary of Defense.
- (2) The authority to establish salary schedules and other related benefits for faculty and staff described in Paragraph 2.1.
- (3) The authorities reserved to the Secretary of Defense, the USD(P&R), and the Deputy Chief Management Officer of the Department of Defense pursuant to DoD Instruction (DoDI) 5105.04.
- c. Recommends policies and procedures to the USD(P&R) to effectively execute USU programs and activities, and implements such recommendations if directed. This action includes, but is not limited to, the development of regulations and participation in the planning, programming, budgeting, and execution process, including establishing a manpower document.
- d. Supports the Board of Regents, USU, in its capacity to provide independent advice to the Secretary of Defense through the USD(P&R); the ASD(HA); and the President, USU on matters concerning the operation of the USU, particularly academic affairs and management.
- e. Develops USU performance goals to assist in strategic planning and characterizes accomplishment of the USU mission.
 - f. Defines performance metrics to measure achievement of USU goals.
- g. Consults regularly with the Surgeons General of the uniformed services; the Director, Defense Health Agency; and the Joint Staff Surgeon concerning USU goals and objectives and progress in meeting them.

- h. Through the President, USU, and in coordination with the Director, Defense Threat Reduction Agency, ensures the Director, Armed Forces Radiobiology Research Institute (AFRRI) maintains three deployable medical radiobiology advisory teams pursuant to DoDD 3150.08 and DoDI 3150.10, and in accordance with DoDI 5105.18.
- i. In coordination with the Secretaries of the Military Departments and the Secretary of Health and Human Services, assesses statutory and budgetary limits on USU student admissions.
- 2.3. PRESIDENT, USU. Under the authority, direction, and control of the ASD(HA), the President, USU:
- a. Offers educational programs leading to degrees in the health professions that meet the standards of applicable and recognized accrediting, licensing, and certifying agencies, and confers such degrees after considering the recommendations of faculty.
- b. Ensures that curriculum and training opportunities, to the maximum extent possible, are aligned to critical wartime specialties, and that students are encouraged to pursue operationally relevant assignments.
 - c. Develops and administers policies and procedures on:
 - (1) The academic affairs of:
 - (a) The F. Edward Hébert School of Medicine (SOM).
 - (b) The Daniel K. Inouye Graduate School of Nursing (GSN).
 - (c) The Postgraduate Dental College (PDC).
 - (d) The College of Allied Health Sciences (CAHS).
- (2) Activities of the AFRRI and other USU organizational elements and associated programs, sponsored or accredited by the USU to accomplish the USU mission.
- d. Develops funding requirements for USU that will be resourced in the program objective memorandum of the Defense Health Program for incorporation into the budget estimate submission and President's budget submissions.
- e. Ensures accreditation requirements are met for USU to operate as an academic institution with appropriate autonomy.
- f. Appoints a representative to any coordination, oversight, or assessment board or committee established pursuant to DoDI 5105.18 and as directed by the ASD(HA).
- g. Selects an officer to serve as professor of military, naval, or air science pursuant to Section 2113 (c)(3) of Title 10, U.S.C.

- h. Selects, after consultation with the Surgeons General of the respective uniformed services, one or more military officer(s) to serve as professors, instructors, or administrative staff pursuant to Section 2113(c)(1) of Title 10, U.S.C. Unless released earlier by the President, USU, the selected military officer(s) will serve in the positions no less than 4 years.
- i. Consults regularly with the Surgeons General of the uniformed services; the Director, Defense Health Agency; and the Joint Staff Surgeon concerning USU goals and objectives and progress in meeting them.
- j. Through the Director, AFRRI, conducts activities to better understand the biological effects of ionizing radiation, support the operational force, and engages in collaborative research and development (R&D) of medical capabilities for exposure to ionizing radiation. These activities will:
- (1) Reflect requirements identified by the DoD Components in support of current and future military operations.
- (2) Evaluate the individual and collective performance of deployed Service members in radiological and nuclear environments.
- (3) Consider present and projected risks to the United States and the Military Services, including risks to operations, weapons, and defense systems.
- (4) Include advanced education and training in the field of radiobiology, including the biological effects from nuclear and radiological weapons, to meet the internal requirements of USU, the Military Departments, other DoD Components and, as necessary, other organizations.
- (5) Include analysis, study, and consultation on the impact of the biological effects of ionizing radiation on the organizational efficiency of the Military Departments and their members.
- (6) Include cooperative research with the Military Departments on aspects of operational and medical support, considerations related to nuclear weapons effects, and the radiobiological hazards of space operations.
- (7) Include cooperative research and other enterprises with other federal agencies involved in homeland security and emergency medical preparedness, consistent with the mission of the AFRRI and applicable authorities.
 - k. Develops an annual plan for AFRRI R&D activities.
- 1. Develops and implements overall procedures for operation and oversight of USU admissions, to include:
- (1) Coordinating with the Surgeons General of the uniformed services to determine the overall number of students to be admitted into USU educational programs each year and, as appropriate, the relative number of spaces in USU educational programs to be allocated to the individual uniformed services.

- (2) Coordinating with academic deans of the SOM, GSN, PDC, and CAHS in developing and prescribing comprehensive admission requirements, application procedures, and acceptance procedures for all USU programs, implementing national standard best academic practices to the extent these practices are consistent with this instruction and its references.
- (3) Coordinating with the Secretaries of the Military Departments and the Department of Health and Human Services, or their designees, to ensure the proper implementation of the admissions process and compliance with officer commissioning requirements.
- (4) Coordinating the appointment of a USU commissioning coordinator, who will forward requests for waiver of medical standards to a medical officer identified and appointed by each uniformed service to approve USU waiver requests for waivers of Service accession medical standards to the Service designated waiver authority to adjudicate USU waiver requests. Final decisions on waiver requests are made by the uniformed service appointed medical officer. Unless otherwise determined by their respective uniformed service, this medical officer will be assigned to the USU. Unless otherwise determined by the accession waiver authority of the respective uniformed service, the medical student applicant will be assigned to the USU. Students are held to retention standards upon matriculation and throughout their enrollment at the USU.
- (5) Issuing, at least every other year, with addendums as necessary, the USU Bulletin describing USU educational programs and their admissions requirements, application procedures, and acceptance procedures, as well as summarizing federal-duty obligations as specified in separate, individual contracts with the Military Departments, the U.S. Public Health Service, and other federal agencies.
- (6) Monitoring, reviewing, and evaluating the USU admissions process in coordination with the academic deans of the SOM, GSN, PDC, and CAHS to ensure its effectiveness and efficiency, and to revise the procedures, as necessary.
- m. Exercises authority to grant exceptions, consistent with accreditation requirements, to all matters related to USU admissions procedures that are not specifically reserved for the respective uniformed services. This authority does not create any appellate right for applicants to any USU degree-granting programs.
 - n. Exercises the authorities delegated in ASD(HA) memorandums.
- o. Makes use of established facilities and services in the DoD and other government agencies, when possible, to avoid duplication and achieve maximum efficiency and economy, and is responsible for the day-to-day operation of the USU.
- p. Ensures that all transactions with the Henry M. Jackson Foundation for the Advancement of Military Medicine (or any other non-profit entity) under Section 2113(g) of Title 10, U.S.C., comply with all applicable requirements of law, DoD issuances, and delegations of authority from the ASD(HA).

- 2.4. DIRECTOR, DEFENSE LEGAL SERVICES AGENCY. Under the authority, direction, and control of the General Counsel of the Department of Defense, and in addition to the responsibilities in Paragraph 2.5., the Director, Defense Legal Services Agency, provides legal advice and services for the USU in accordance with DoDD 5145.04.
- **2.5.** OSD AND DOD COMPONENT HEADS. The OSD and DoD Component heads will coordinate with the ASD(HA) on all matters relating to the USU mission.
- 2.6. SECRETARIES OF THE MILITARY DEPARTMENTS. The Secretaries of the Military Departments will:
- a. In alignment with Service staffing levels, provide authorized military manpower to the USU in accordance with approved individual Service manning documents that identify USU billets and which describe the requirements of the Service member selected to fill the position in terms of Service, Corps, grade, and specialty.
- b. Ensure periods of active duty served by medical students of USU are accurately determined for purposes of computation of retirement pay pursuant to Sections 2114(b)(1) and (c) and 2126 of Title 10, U.S.C.

SECTION 3: PROCEDURES

- 3.1. DIRECTOR, AFRRI, NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT. The Director, AFRRI, is selected and appointed as follows:
- a. Candidates are individuals that are military officers (in grade O-6) and hold an earned academic doctoral degree in one of the life sciences.
- b. The President, USU, will request nominations from the Surgeons General of the Military Departments who will nominate one candidate from their respective Departments with the proper professional qualifications and demonstrated leadership ability.
- c. The President, USU, will appoint an individual from the Surgeons General-nominated list of Military Department candidates to the position of the Director, AFRRI.
- **3.2.** ADMISSIONS PROCEDURES. Individuals seeking admission as medical students, graduate students, or students in other USU degree-granting programs are advised to apply following instructions periodically published by the respective schools in the USU Bulletin, available online at www.usuhs.edu/apply.

SECTION 4: MISSION AND ORGANIZATION

4.1. MISSION. The USU mission is to:

- a. Educate, train, and comprehensively prepare uniformed services health professionals, officers, scientists, and leaders to directly support the Military and Public Health Systems, the National Security and National Defense Strategies of the United States, and the readiness of the uniformed services.
- b. Provide high quality educational programs in health sciences and grant applicable degrees pursuant to Sections 2113(e) and 2113(f) of Title 10, U.S.C.
- c. Ensure consistent development of sound qualities (including professionalism, ethics, leadership, and commitment) in USU students to prepare them for exemplary careers as operationally oriented health professionals and leaders, thus providing continuity in the health care for the DoD, uniformed services, and others.
- d. Conduct health readiness training and continuing health education for members of the uniformed services and others in the health professions.
 - e. Conduct health sciences research consistent with the academic mission of the USU.
- f. Conduct R&D activities related to the biological effects of ionizing radiation and other specified functions through the AFRRI.
- g. Conduct additional activities as directed by the ASD(HA) or higher authorities to further the DoD health mission.

4.2. ORGANIZATION. USU is an organizational entity of the DoD. The USU consists of:

- a. A President, who is the chief executive officer of the USU, appointed by the Secretary of Defense pursuant to Section 2113 (b) of Title 10, U.S.C.
 - b. A Board of Regents:
- (1) Established by Section 2113a of Title 10, U.S.C., and operated pursuant to DoDI 5105.04.
 - (2) Consisting of appointed members pursuant to Section 2113a (b) of Title 10, U.S.C.
- (3) Vested with the authority to advise, under procedures authorized by DoDI 5105.04, the Secretary of Defense; the USD(P&R); the ASD(HA); and the President, USU on matters concerning the operation of the USU, particularly academic affairs and management.
 - c. Four schools and one institute:

- (1) The SOM. The SOM admits students (medical officer candidates) to the doctor of medicine program and military and civilian graduate students to non-doctor of medicine degree-granting graduate programs.
- (2) The GSN. The GSN admits registered nurses into one of several advanced nursing practice tracks and to a research doctoral program in nursing science.
- (3) The PDC. The PDC selects and admits students to the master of science in oral biology program from the cohort of officers previously selected for residency training in USU-affiliated graduate dental education programs by their respective uniformed service.
- (4) The CAHS. The CAHS admits students to undergraduate and graduate programs of study in the field of allied health sciences with a goal of enhancing their performance on military health multidisciplinary teams.
- (5) The AFRRI. The AFRRI conducts R&D activities and provides education, training, and advisory assistance to the DoD related to the health effects of radiation exposure, especially as related to the support of military operations.
- d. Other schools, institutes, or subordinate organizational elements and associated programs as directed by the ASD(HA) and established by the President, USU, within assigned resources.

GLOSSARY

ACRONYMS.

AFRRI Armed Forces Radiobiology Research Institute
ASD(HA) Assistant Secretary of Defense for Health Affairs

CAHS College of Allied Health Sciences

DoDD DoD directive
DoDI DoD instruction

GSN Daniel K. Inouye Graduate School of Nursing

PDC Postgraduate Dental College

R&D research and development

SOM F. Edward Hébert School of Medicine

U.S.C. United States Code

USD(P&R) Under Secretary of Defense for Personnel and Readiness
USU Uniformed Services University of the Health Sciences

REFERENCES

- DoD Directive 1020.02E, "Diversity Management and Equal Opportunity in the DoD," June 8, 2015, as amended
- DoD Directive 3150.08, "DoD Response to Nuclear and Radiological Incidents," January 20, 2010
- DoD Directive 5124.02, "Under Secretary of Defense for Personnel and Readiness (USD(P&R))," June 23, 2008
- DoD Directive 5136.01, "Assistant Secretary of Defense for Health Affairs (ASD(HA))," September 30, 2013, as amended
- DoD Directive 5145.04, "Defense Legal Services Agency (DLSA)," April 16, 2012
- DoD Instruction 3150.10, "DoD Response to U.S. Nuclear Weapon Incidents," July 2, 2010.
- DoD Instruction 5105.04, "Department of Defense Federal Advisory Committee Management Program," August 6, 2007
- DoD Instruction 5105.18, "DoD Intergovernmental and Intragovernmental Committee Management Program," July 10, 2009, as amended
- DoD Manual 8910.01, Volume 1, "DoD Information Collections: Procedures for DoD Internal Information Collections," June 30, 2014, as amended
- DoD Manual 8910.01, Volume 2, "DoD Information Collections: Procedures for DoD Public Information Collections," June 30, 2014, as amended

United States Code, Title 10

REFERENCES



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT - RECEIPT OF CORRESPONDENCE

ACKNOVLEDGEWIEN 1 - RECEIP	T OF CORRESPONDENCE		
Name and Address of Applicant and/or Licensee	Date		
Denielle Mesten	02/24/2020		
Danielle Wooten CAPT, MSC, USN	License Number(s)		
Acting Director, AFRRI	19-08330-03		
Uniformed Services University of the Health Sciences	Mail Control Number(s)		
Armed Forces Radiobiology Research Institute	618061		
8901 Wisconsin Avenue, Building 42	Licensing and/or Technical Rev	iewer or Branch	
Bethesda, MD 20889-5603	Branch 2		
This is to acknowledge receipt of your: ✓ Letter and/or ☐ Application Dated: 01/24/2020			
The initial processing, which included an administrative review, has been performed.			
✓ Amendment Termination	New License Rene	ewal	
There were no administrative omissions identified during our initial review.			
This is to acknowledge receipt of your application for renewal of the material(s) license identified above. Your application is deemed timely filed, and accordingly, the license will not expire until final action has been taken by this office.			
Your application for a new NRC license did not include your taxpayer identification number. Please complete and submit NRC Form 531, Request for Taxpayer Identification Number, located at the following link: http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-collections/forms/nrc531.pdf Follow the instructions on the form for submission.			
The following administrative omissions have been identified:			
Your application has been assigned the above listed MAIL CONTROL NUMBER. When calling to inquire about this action, please refer to this control number. Your application has been forwarded to a technical reviewer. Please note that the technical review, which is normally completed within 180 days for a renewal application (90 days for all other requests), may identify additional omissions or require additional information. If you have any questions concerning the processing of your application, our contact information is listed below:			
Region I U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission of Nuclear Materials Safety 2100 Renaissance Blvd, Suite 100 King of Prussia, PA 19406-2713 (610) 337-5260 or (610) 337-5398			